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BOARD’S REPORT 

 

To the Members,  

 

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Tenth Annual Report of the Company together 

with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2020. 

 

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS 

 

The Company is engaged in the business of dealing as manufacturers, producers, designers, 

stockists, merchandisers, distributors, wholesalers, suppliers and dealers in all kinds of 

textile goods. There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the 

year under review. 

 

2. FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 

During the year the performance of the company has remained satisfactory. The brief 

financial highlights are as follows. 

 

Particulars 

Standalone                                 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

2019-20 2018-19 

Turnover  39,356.40 28,524.68 

Other Income 482.45 573.15 

Total Revenue 39,838.86 29,097.83 

Less: Total Expenses excluding (A) and (B) 26,705.90 23,613.27 

Less: Finance Cost (A) 1,639.94 1.79 

Less: Depreciation & Amortization Expense (B) 4,657.20 477.97 

Profit before Tax 6,835.82 5,004.80 

Current Tax 2,037.79        1,339.89 

Deferred Tax (465.38) 15.52 

Net Tax 1,572.41 1,355.41 

Profit  after Tax  5,263.41 3,649.39 

Less : Proposed Dividend & Tax thereon - - 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 5,263.41 3,649.39 

 

3. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE  

 

Your company has reported total revenue of Rs.39,838.86 Lakhs (Thirty Nine Thousand 

Eight Hundred and Thirty Eight Lakhs Only) for the current year 2019-20 as compared to 

previous year 2018-19 at Rs.29,097.83 Lakhs (Twenty Nine Thousand and Ninety Seven 

Lakhs), resulting in the increase of 36.91 % growth as compared to previous year. The Net 

Profit after tax for the year has increased by 44.22 % as compared to previous year.  

 

Your Company continues with its rigorous cost restructuring exercises and efficiency 

improvements which have resulted in significant savings through continued focus on cost 

controls and process efficiencies thereby enabling the Company to maintain profitable 

growth.  

 

 

 



4. RESERVE AND SURPLUS AND TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR 

PROTECTION FUND 

 

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserve account for the year ended 

31.03.2020. Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend declared and paid last year, the 

provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply. 

 

5. DIVIDEND 

 

The Directors at their meeting held on 17-09-2020 has recommended preference dividend 

for the financial year 2019-20 to its preference shareholders and the same has to be 

approved in the shareholders meeting to be held on 09-10-2020. The Company has paid 

preference dividend to preference shareholders for the FY 2018-19 on 25th October 2019. No 

dividend for equity shares is recommended as the company decided to conserve the 

resources for the business. 

 

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 

POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATES AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

 

Emergence of Covid-19 

 

Towards the end of the financial year, the World Health Organisation (WHO) declared                    

COVID -19 a pandemic and the outbreak, which infected millions, has resulted in deaths of a 

significant number of people globally. Covid-19 is seen having an unprecedented impact on 

people and economies worldwide. 

 

The Company is taking all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the impact of the 

challenges being faced in the business. The Company is working towards being resilient in 

order to sail through the current situation. It is focussed on controlling the fixed costs, 

maintaining liquidity and closely monitoring the supply chain to ensure that the 

manufacturing facilities operate smoothly. 

 

The Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India on March 24, 2020 notified the first ever 

nationwide lockdown in India to contain the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic. All retail stores 

in our network remained shut due to lockdown till 4th May 2020 and the sales were totally 

affected due to the same. Further the lockdown was released partially over the period and it 

had its repercussion on the retail trade.   

 

In view of the outbreak of the pandemic, the Company undertook timely and essential 

measures to ensure the safety and well-being of its employees at all its factory, various stores 

and the head office. The office based employees were allowed to work from home by 

providing adequate digital and other assistance. The Company observed all the government 

advisories and guidelines thoroughly and in good faith. Presently, the company has opened 

all the stores except in the containment area and it is working back to reach the pre-covid 

level operations. 

 

7. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANIES 

OPERATION IN FUTURE 

 

No significant and material orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal 

that has had an impact on the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 



8. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

a) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

 

Your Company has considered Sustainability as one of the strategic priorities and energy 

conservation is one of the strong pillars for preserving natural resources and improving 

bottom line. Your Company is continuously striving towards improving the energy 

performance in all areas. Your Company has always considered energy and natural 

resource conservation as a focus area and has been consciously making efforts towards 

improving the energy performance year on year. 

 

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy are: 

 

Replacement of conventional lighting with LED lighting.  

Energy efficient air-conditioning systems. 

Solar Energy Tapping is being worked on by the company for utilizing alternate sources 

of energy  

 

The capital investment on energy conservation equipment – NIL 

 

b) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

 

There is no material action on technology absorption under Section 134(3)(m) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

During the year, the company has reported an import of Rs.4481.32 Lakhs on CIF basis 

and the export amounting to Rs.2.84 Lakhs on FOB basis. 

 

9. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK 

MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY 

 

Your Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place. The risk 

management framework works at various levels across the enterprise. These levels form the 

strategic defence cover of the Company’s risk management. The Company has a robust 

Organizational structure for managing and reporting on risks. 

 

10. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility provisions under the Companies Act are applicable on the 

company from the financial year ending March 2017. The company has formulated CSR 

policy and constituted CSR committee. The present members of the CSR committee are as 

follows: 

 

Composition of CSR Committee at the end of the financial year 

 

The composition of CSR committee constitutes three directors: 

 

Mr.Gautam Saraogi – Chairman 

Mr.Prakash Kumar Saraogi -Member 

Mr.Rahul Saraogi - Member 



 

Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs.6.05 Lakhs. The CSR Policy and Annual Report 

on CSR has been attached as Annexure B to this report. 

 

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

There are no loans, guarantees or investments made under the section 186 of the Companies 

Act 2013 during the year under review.  

 

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:  

 

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year ended 31st 

March 2020 were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. 

Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not attracted. 

Further, there are no materially significant related party transactions during the year under 

review made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, or other designated persons which 

may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. However, related 

party transactions have been properly approved by the Board, whenever initiated and 

Details pertaining to related party transactions are given in Form AOC-2, as required under 

section 134(3)(h), is enclosed as Annexure-A to this report. The disclosure of                        

transactions with related party for the year is given under Note No.30 to the financial 

statements. 

 

13. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE 

REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING 

COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS 

 

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their 

report. The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to 

the Company. 

 

14. COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF 

REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES 

 

Pursuant to Section 178(1) of the Companies Act 2013, a Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee was constituted by the Board at its meeting held on 07th Nov 2019 with the 

following Members: 

 

 

The Company has devised a policy relating to Appointment of Directors, payment of 

Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive attributes, independence of 

Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

 

S.No. Name Designation 

(i) 
Mr.Ravi Shankar  Venkataraman Ganapathy 

Agraharam 

Chairman 

(ii) Mr.Rahul Saraogi Member 

(iii) Mr.Prashant Purker  Member 

(iv) Ms.Sakshi Vijay Chopra Member 

(v) Mr.Prakash Kumar Saraogi Member 

(vi) Mr.Gautam Saraogi Member 



15. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

Disclosures under this clause are not applicable as the company is a private limited company. 

 

16. ANNUAL RETURN 

 

The extract of Annual Return is given as annexure to this Board’s Report as MGT-9. 

 

17. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW 

 

The Board of Directors duly met Seven (7) times on 16-04-2019, 14-05-2019, 10-06-2019, 

02-07-2019, 01-08-2019, 07-11-2019 and 26-02-2020 during the financial year 2019-20. 

The intervening gap between two Meetings was within the period prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The dates of the Board Meetings are as given below:  

 

Date of Meeting Directors Strength No. of Directors 

Present 

16-04-2019 Six Five 

14-05-2019 Six Two 

10-06-2019 Six Two 

02-07-2019 Six Two 

01-08-2019 Six Six 

07-11-2019 Six Six 

26-02-2020 Six Six 

 

18. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board 

hereby submits its responsibility Statement: 

 

a. In the preparation of the Annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020 the 

applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation 

relating to material departures, if any.  

 

b. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2020 and of 

the profit for the year ended 31st March 2020. 

 

c. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities. 

 

d. The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020 on 

a going concern basis. 

 

e. The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

 



 

19. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  

 

There are no Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

 

20. DEPOSITS 

 

Your Directors state that there is no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the 

deposit as there were no transactions falling under chapter V during the year under review. 

 

21. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The provisions of Section 149 (4) pertaining to the appointment of Independent Directors do 

not apply to our Company. 

 

22. STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 

thereunder, the current auditors of the Company, M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, 

Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 117366W), were initially appointed in 

casual vacancy by the shareholders in the EGM held on 11th February 2015 and then for a 

term of five years by the shareholders at their 5th Annual General Meeting to hold office until 

the conclusion of the 10th Annual General Meeting. The term of appointment of the Statutory 

Auditors expires at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. The Board recommends 

to the members to appoint M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP., Chartered Accountants (Firm 

Registration No. 117366W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a remaining term of 4 

(Four) years to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the 14th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company.  

 

23. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

Being a Private Limited Company and not having outstanding loans or borrowings from 

banks or public financial institutions of one hundred crore rupees or more, the provisions of 

Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Secretarial Audit Report are not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

24. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGIL MECHANISM 

 

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, an Audit Committee was constituted by 

the Board at its meeting held on 07th Nov 2019 with the following Members: 

 

 

During the FY 19-20, the Audit Committee met 1 (one time) on 26-02-2020. 

 

S.No. Name Designation 

(i) Mr.Prashant Purker  Chairman 

(ii) 
Mr.Ravi Shankar  Venkataraman Ganapathy 

Agraharam 

Member 

(iii) Mr.Gautam Saraogi Member 

(iv) Ms.Sakshi Vijay Chopra Member 

(v) Mr.Prakash Kumar Saraogi Member 

(vi) Mr.Rahul Saraogi Member 



Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act 2013, the Company was not required to 

constitute a Vigil Mechanism. 

 

25. SHARE CAPITAL 

 

The paid up equity share capital as on March 31, 2020 was Rs.78,99,48,700. The company 

during the year neither issued any shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock 

options or sweat equity or bonus shares.  

 

26. THE DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE 

APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR 

 

There has been no change in the constitution of Board during the year under review i.e. the 

structure of the Board remains the same. 

 

In view of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms.V.Gayathri (ACS-25942) was 

appointed as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 25th October 2019, in the place of 

Ms.Anu Maria Sebastian who ceased to be the Company Secretary with effect from 01st 

August 2019 on account of her resignation from the services of the Company. 

 

27. COST RECORDS 

 

The provision of Cost audit as per section 148 is not applicable and the company is not 

required to maintain cost records for the financial year under review. 

 

28. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) 

OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 

 

There were no frauds as reported by the statutory auditors under sub section 12 of section 

143 of the Companies Act 2013 along with rules made there-under other than those which 

are reportable to the Central Government for the financial year ended 31st March 2020. 

 

29. THE DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH 

REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the 

Financial Statements commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. 

Such controls have been assessed during the year under review taking into consideration the 

essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. Based on the results of such assessments carried out by Management, no reportable 

material weakness or significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal financial 

controls was observed. Nonetheless your Company recognizes that any internal control 

framework, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations and accordingly, regular 

audits and review processes ensure that such systems are reinforced on an ongoing basis.  

 

30. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

 

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of 

The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) 

Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints 

received regarding sexual harassment from all employees (permanent, contractual, 



temporary, trainees are covered under this policy). ICC has received no complaints during 

the financial year. 

 

31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI 

 

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards specified by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and approved by the Central Government. 
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Form No.MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2020 

[Pursuant to section92 (3)of the Companies Act,2013 and rule12(1)of the 

Companies (Management and Administration)Rules, 2014] 
 

I.REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
 

i. CIN U17291TN2010PTC077303 

ii. Registration Date 09-09-2010 

iii. Name of  the Company GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED 

iv. 
 

Category/Sub-Category of the Company 

 

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES 

INDIAN NON-GOVERNMENT COMPANY 

v. 
 

Address of the Registered office and contact details 

 

SATHAK CENTER, 5TH FLOOR NEW NO.4, OLD NO.144/2, 

NUNGAMBAKKAM HIGH ROAD, CHENNAI - 600034  

Contact Details - actsmain@gocolors.com 

vi. Whether listed company Yes/No 

vii. 
Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer 

Agent, if any 

KFIN TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED 

SELENIUM BUILDING, TOWER B, PLOT NO 31&32, 

FINANCIAL DISTRICT, NANAKRAMGUDA, SERILINGAMPALLY, 

HYDERABAD, RANGAREDDI, TELANGANA – 500032 

+91-40-67162222/79611000 

 

II.PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:- 

 

S.No Name and Description of the Main products/ services NIC Code of the Product/ service %  to total turnover of the company 

1. 
Retail sale of readymade garments, hosiery goods, 

other articles of clothing and clothing accessories 

F47711** G-2 in Line with Form 

MGT-7* 
98.791% 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 

S.No. Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ 

Subsidiary/ 

Associate 

% of shares 

held 

Applicable 

Section 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

 

i. Category-wise Share Holding 

 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 

the year 

No.of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 

during 

the year  Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

A. Promoter          

1) Indian          

a) Individual/ HUF - 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000 99.9996 240 - 240 0.0008 -99.9980% 

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies Corp - - - - - - - - - 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

f) Any Other (Trusts) - - - - 2,99,99,760 - 2,99,99,760 99.9988 99.9980% 

Sub-total(A)(1):- - - - - - - - - - 

2) Foreign - - - - - - - - - 

g) NRIs-Individuals - - - - - - - - - 

h) Other-Individuals - - - - - - - - - 

i) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - 

j) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

k) Any Other…. - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total(A)(2):- - - - - - - - - - 

Total Promoter Shareholding 

(A)=(A)(1)+ (A)(2) 

- 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000 99.9996 3,00,00,000  - 3,00,00,000 99.9996 - 

B.  Public Shareholding          

1. Institutions - - - - - - - - - 

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - 



b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 

e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - - 

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - - 

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - - 

i) Others (specify) 

- India Advantage Fund-

Registered   as a Trust 

- Dynamic India S4 US I 

 

 

- 

- 

 

 

 

54 

6 

 

 

54 

6 

 

 

0.00018 

0.00002 

 

 

54 

6 

 

 

- 

- 

 

 

54 

6 

 

 

0.00018 

0.00002 

 

 

- 

 

Sub-total(B)(1)  60 60 0.0002 60 - 60 0.0002 - 

2. Non Institutions          

a) Bodies Corp. 

(i) Indian 

(ii) Overseas - Sequoia Capital India 

Investments IV 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

60 

 

 

 

60 

 

 

0.0002 

 

 

60 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

60 

 

 

0.0002 

 

 

- 

b) Individuals 

 

(i) Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh 

 

(ii) Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital in excess of Rs 1 

lakh 

 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

 

- 

c) Others(Specify) - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total(B)(2)  60 60 0.0002 60 - 60 0.0002 - 

TotalPublic Shareholding            

(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 

  

120 

 

120 

 

0.0004 

 

120 

 

- 

 

120 

 

0.0004 

- 

 C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & 

ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total (A+B+C) - 30000120 30000120 100 30000120 - 30000120 100 - 

 

 

 

 



ii.Shareholding of Promoters 

 

Sr. 

No 

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year 

Shareholding at the end of the year % change 

in share 

holding 

during the 

year 
  No. of  

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of the 

co. 

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

1. RAHUL SARAOGI 14999940 49.9996 NIL 60 0.0002 NIL -49.9994 
2. GAUTAM SARAOGI 14999940 49.9996 NIL 60 0.0002 NIL -49.9994 

3. PRAKASH KUMAR SARAOGI 60 0.0002 NIL 60 0.0002 NIL NIL 

4. VINOD KUMAR SARAOGI 60 0.0002 NIL 60 0.0002 NIL NIL 

5. GAUTAM SARAOGI, TRUSTEE OF PKS FAMILY 

TRUST 

0 0 NIL 14999880 49.9994 NIL 49.9994 

6. RAHUL SARAOGI, TRUSTEE OF VKS FAMILY 

TRUST 

0 0 NIL 14999880 49.9994 NIL 49.9994 

 Total 30000000 99.9996 

 

NIL 30000000 99.9996 

 

NIL NIL 

 

iii.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 
 

S.No Name of the 

Shareholder 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

April 1, 2019 

Date Reason Increase /  

(Decrease) in Shareholding 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

1. Rahul Saraogi 14999940 49.9996 31-01-2020  Share Transfer (14999880) (49.9994) 60 0.0002 

2. Gautam Saraogi 14999940 49.9996 31-01-2020  Share Transfer (14999880) (49.9994) 60 0.0002 

3. Prahlad Rai 

Saraogi 

0 0  31-01-2020 Share Transfer 

(From Rahul 

Saraogi and 

Gautam 

Saraogi) 

    29999760      99.9988 29999760 99.9988 



4. Prahlad Rai 

Saraogi 

29999760 99.9988 31-01-2020 Share Transfer 

(To Trusts) 

(29999760)     (99.9988) 0 0 

5. Gautam Saraogi, 

Trustee - PKS 

Family Trust 

0 0  31-01-2020 Share Transfer     14999880      49.9994 14999880 49.9994 

6. Rahul Saraogi, 

Trustee - VKS 

Family Trust 

0 0  31-01-2020 Share Transfer     14999880      49.9994 14999880 49.9994 

 

 

(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

 

S.No. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year 

Date wise Increase 

/Decrease in 

Shareholding during the 

year specifying the 

reasons for increase 

/decrease                               

(e.g. allotment/transfer/ 

bonus/sweat equity etc) 

Shareholding at the end of the 

year (or on the date of 

separation ,if separated during 

the year) 

   No. of Shares % of total Shares 

of the company 

No. of Shares % of total 

Shares of the 

company 

1. India Advantage Fund S4 I 54 0.00018 No change 54 0.00018 

2. Dynamic India Fund S4 US I     6 0.00002 No change 6 0.00002 

3. Sequoia Capital India Investments IV 60 0.00020 No change 60 0.00020 

 

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

S.No Name of the 

Shareholder 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

April 1, 2019 

Date Reason Increase /  

(Decrease) in Shareholding 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

1. Rahul Saraogi 14999940 49.9996 31-01-2020  Share Transfer (14999880) (49.9994) 60 0.0002 

2. Gautam Saraogi 14999940 49.9996 31-01-2020  Share Transfer (14999880) (49.9994) 60 0.0002 

3. Prakash Saraogi 60 0.0002 NA No change NIL NIL 60 0.0002 

 

 



 

V. INDEBTEDNESS 
 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 
 

 Secured Loans 

excluding 

deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 

i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but not paid 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 

 

8,28,05,000 

- 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

8,28,05,000 

- 

- 

Total(i+ii+iii) 8,28,05,000 - - 8,28,05,000 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 

 -  Addition 

 -  Reduction 

 

5,49,09,683 

- 

 

- 

- 

 

- 

- 

 

5,49,09,683 

- 

Net Change 5,49,09,683 - - 5,49,09,683 

Indebtedness  at the end  of the financial year 

i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but notpaid  

iii) Interest accrued but not due 

 

2,78,95,317 

- 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

2,78,95,317 

- 

- 

Total (i+ii+iii) 2,78,95,317 - - 2,78,95,317 
 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 
 

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager 

 

 

Total 

Amount Prakash 

Kumar 

Saraogi 

Gautam Saraogi 

1.  Gross salary  Rs.(in lakhs) Rs.(in lakhs) Rs.(in lakhs) 

(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 86.83 34.73 121.56 

(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - 

(c)Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of the Income- tax Act, 1961 - - - 

2.  Stock Option - - - 

3.  Sweat Equity - - - 

4.  Commission -  as % of profit (or) others, specify - - - 



5.  Others, please specify – Sitting fees - - - 

6.  Total(A) 86.83 34.73 121.56 

 Ceiling as per the Act NA NA NA 
 

B. Remuneration to other Directors: 

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total Amount 

     

 Independent Directors    

 Fee for attending Board/Committee    

 Commission    

 Others, Please specify    

 Total(1)    

 Other Non-Executive Directors 

·Fee for attending board / committee meetings 

·Commission 

·Others, please specify – Remuneration 

   

 Total(2)    

 Total(B)=(1+2)    

 Total Managerial Remuneration    

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act    

 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD/Manager/WTD 

S.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

  V Gayathri* 

Company Secretary

      (Rs. In lakhs) 

R Mohan 

CFO 

 (Rs. In lakhs) 

Total 

 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

1. Gross salary    

(a)Salary as per provisions contained in Section17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 6.58 131.40 137.98 

(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - 

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - 

2. Stock Option - - - 

3. Sweat Equity - - - 

4. Commission 

-  as % of profit 

- others, specify 

- - - 

5. Others, please specify - - - 

6. Total 6.58 131.40 137.98 



*Appointed w.e.f 25-10-2019 

 

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

 

Type Section of the companies Act Brief 

description 

Details of Penalty/ 

Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 

imposed 

Authority[RD 

/NCLT/Court] 

Appeal made If 

any 

(give details) 

A. Company 

Penalty  

NOT APPLICABLE Punishment 

Compounding 

B. Directors 

Penalty  

NOT APPLICABLE Punishment 

Compounding 

C. Other Officers In Default 

Penalty  

NOT APPLICABLE Punishment 

Compounding 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors     

GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Prakash Kumar Saraogi  Mr. Gautam Saraogi 

Director                                                                       Director 

DIN: 00496255     DIN: 03209296 

6A, NITHYASHREE APARTMENT,                        6A, NITHYASHREE APARTMENT,  

NO. 51, CHAMIERS ROAD, R.A. PURAM,    NO. 51, CHAMIERS ROAD, R.A. PURAM,  

CHENNAI 600028     CHENNAI 600028 

Place: Chennai       

Date:17-09-2020 



FORM NO. AOC.2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 

188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

I. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: NIL 

 

II. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 

Name of the Related Party: Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited  

Nature of Relationship: Private Company in which there are Common Directors 

 

S.No. Nature of 

Contract 

Duration of the 

Contract / 

Arrangement / 

Transactions 

Salient terms of the contracts or 

arrangements or transactions 

including the value, if any 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Value of 

transactions  

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board, if 

any 

Amount 

paid as 

advances, if 

any 

 

 

1 Purchase of Assets Ongoing Transaction is on arm’s length 

basis and in the ordinary course of 

business 

0.27 - NA 

2 Rent Ongoing Transaction is on arm’s length 

basis and in the ordinary course of 

business 

161.30 10-04-2018 NA 

3 Subcontracting  One-time Transaction is on arm’s length 

basis and in the ordinary course of 

business 

45.85 - NA 

4 Security Deposit Ongoing Transaction is on arm’s length 

basis and in the ordinary course of 

business 

72.00 10-04-2018 NA 

5 EB  One-time Transaction is on arm’s length 

basis and in the ordinary course of 

business 

4.22 - NA 



6 Other Income Ongoing Transaction is on arm’s length 

basis and in the ordinary 

course of business 

2.79 - NA 

7 Trade payables Ongoing Transaction is on arm’s length 

basis and in the ordinary 

course of business 

4.21 - NA 

 

Note: All Transactions with related parties are in arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business which are exempted from any approvals 

as required under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act 2013. 

 

For and on behalf 

of the Board of Directors 

Go Fashion (India) Private Limited 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Prakash Kumar Saraogi                                                        Mr. Gautam Saraogi 

Director                                                                                             Director 

                                                   DIN: 00496255                                 DIN: 03209296 

 



ANNEXURE B 

 

ANNUAL REPORT DETAILS OF CSR ACTIVITIES 

 

Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy 

 

The Board of Directors adopted the CSR policy on June 14, 2017. Corporate Social Responsibility 

(CSR) at GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED is beyond business and extends to the 

implementation of socially relevant activities for the benefit of society at large. 

 

Composition of CSR Committee at the end of the financial year and number of Meetings of 

CSR committee 

 

The composition of CSR committee constitutes three directors: 

Mr.Gautam Saraogi - Chairman 

Mr. Prakash Kumar Saraogi - Member 

Mr.Rahul Saraogi - Member 

 

Number of Meetings of CSR committee 

 

The CSR committee met 2 (two) times during the financial year ended on 31-03-2020. 

 

Average Net profit of the Company for last three financial years 

 

Average Net Profit (Before Tax): Rs. 31,58,60,390 (Rupees Thirty One Crores Fifty Eight Lakhs 

Sixty Thousand Three Hundred and Ninety)  

 

Prescribed CSR Expenditure 2% of the average net profit of the preceding three financial 

years (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above) 

 

The Company is required to spend Rs. 63,17,208 (Rupees Sixty-Three Lakhs Seventeen Thousand 

Two Hundred and Eight only) 

 

Details of CSR Spent during the financial year 

 

(a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs.6.05 lakhs 

(b) Amount Unspent: Rs. 57.12 lakhs 

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year: Promotion of Health Care by 

engaging in Preventive Health Awareness Programme and promoting education 
 

Reason for not spending proposed CSR Expenditure 

 

The Company could not spend the specified CSR amount in full as it was in the process of 

determining specific activities and identifying specific partners that would be aligned with the 

Company’s CSR Policy. 

 

The following amounts remain unspent, including the previous financial years: 

 

Financial Year  Amount Unspent 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

2017-18 6.14 

2018-19 4.97 

2019-20 57.12 

Total Amount 68.23 



Your Directors believe that this process should be completed in the coming financial year and the 

CSR amount as stipulated by the Companies Act will be spent on qualifying activities accordingly. 

 

The Directors would also like to take this opportunity to state that CSR through financial inclusion 

has always been a fundamental part of your Company's business philosophy and culture and the 

Company takes its social responsibilities extremely seriously. 

 

Responsibility Statement 

 

The Chairman of CSR Committee has given a responsibility statement that the CSR policy 

implementation and monitoring thereof is, in letter and spirit, in compliance with CSR objectives 

of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr.Prakash Kumar Saraogi     Mr.Gautam Saraogi,                           Mr.Rahul Saraogi 

Member, CSR Committee            Chairman                            Member, CSR Committee   

DIN:00496255                                                DIN:03209296                                    DIN:00496259        

 

         

Place: Chennai 

Date: 17-09-2020 

 

 

 

 

 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To The Members of Go Fashion (India) Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Go Fashion (India) Private 

Limited “the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, and the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 

Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary 

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 

read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind 

AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 

the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows 

and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under 

those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind 

AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS 

financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 

the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include 

the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 

course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 

this regard. 

 

 

 



Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true 

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive 

income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS 

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view 

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 

to do so. 

 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 

reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 

level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these Ind AS financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 

143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 



• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 

the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 

and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other matters 

On account of COVID-19 related lock-down restrictions, management was able to perform 

year end physical verification of inventories, subsequent to the year end at certain locations. 

We were not able to physically observe the verification of inventory that was carried out by 

the Management. Consequently, we have performed alternative procedures to audit the 

existence of inventory as per the guidance provided by in SA 501 “Audit Evidence – Specific 

Considerations for Selected Items” and have obtained sufficient audit evidence to issue our 

unmodified opinion on the statement. Our report on the financial statement is not modified 

in respect of this matter 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit to the extent applicable 

that: 

 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 

with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 



d) In our opinion, the aforesaid  Ind AS  financial  statements  comply  with  the  Ind 

AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such  controls,  refer 

to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 

on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 

controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year 

is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 

amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position in its Ind AS financial statements ; 

 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

 

 

Balaji M N 

Partner 

(Membership No.202094) 

(UDIN: 20202094AAAADT9749) 

 

Place: Bengaluru  

Date:17th September 2020 



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements’ section of our report of even date) 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause 

(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Go Fashion (India) 

Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind 

AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 

to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 

2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 

over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting. 

 

 

 

 

 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 

the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial control 

over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components 

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

  

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

 

 

Balaji M N 

Partner 

(Membership No.202094) 

(UDIN: 20202094AAAADT9749) 

Place: Bengaluru  

Date:17th September 2020 



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph (2) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements” section of our report of even date) 

 

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of the fixed assets. 

(b) Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management 

in accordance with a programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for 

physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the 

information and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on 

such verification. 

 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land 

and building and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

ii. As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the 

Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on 

physical verification. 

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 

Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under 

section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

iv. The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and 

hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 

any deposit during the year. 

 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under 

Section 148(1) of the Act, for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus 

reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 

including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 

Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other 

material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Employees’ State 

Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Excise Duty, 

Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 

2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 

(c) There are no dues of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Good 

and Service Tax or any other material statutory dues as on 31 March 2020 which is 

yet to be paid on account of disputes. 

 

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial 

institutions, banks and government. The Company has not issued any debentures. 
 

 



 

ix. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 

to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers 

or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

 

xi. The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 197 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company. 

 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the 

Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all 

transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have 

been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting 

standards. 

 

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made 

preferential allotment through private placement of shares during the year under 

review. 

 

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during 

the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors 

or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are 

not applicable. 

 

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934. 

 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

 

 

Balaji M N 

Partner 

(Membership No.202094) 

(UDIN: 20202094AAAADT9749) 

 

Place: Bengaluru  

Date:17th September 2020 



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Note No. As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
A. ASSETS

(a)  Property, plant and equipment 3 a                               6,028.95                               4,730.27 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4                                   808.40                                   196.39 
(c)  Other intangible assets 3 b                                     73.16                                     49.08 
(d)  Right-of-use assets 3 c                             19,471.39                                            -   
(e) Financial assets

(i)   Investments 5                                            -                                              -   
(ii)  Loans 6                               2,030.71                               1,794.41 

(f)  Deferred tax assets (net) 24 a                                   561.22                                     88.72 
(g)  Other non-current assets 7                                   125.99                                            -   

Total non - current assets                             29,099.82                               6,858.87 
2. Current assets

(a) Inventories 8                             10,585.65                               6,949.47 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 5                                   885.55                               2,344.64 
(ii) Trade receivables 9                               5,245.15                               3,913.12 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 a                                       9.76                               1,061.30 
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 10 b                               3,242.38                               3,304.12 
(v) Loans 6                                   545.36                                   150.01 

(c) Current tax assets (net) 24 b                                   179.74                                   145.54 
(d) Other current assets 7                               1,806.67                               1,589.42 

Total current assets                             22,500.25                             19,457.62 

                            51,600.07                             26,316.49 

1. Equity
(a) Share capital 11                               7,899.49                               7,899.49 
(b) Other equity 12                             20,730.84                             15,489.20 

Total equity                             28,630.33                             23,388.69 

2. Non-current liabilities
(a) Provisions 13                                   141.95                                     72.44 
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 24 a                                            -                                              -   
(c) Lease Liabilites 17                             17,942.79                                            -   

Total non-current liabilities                             18,084.74                                     72.44 
3. Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i)   Borrowings 14                                   278.95                                   828.05 
(ii)  Trade payables 15

-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises                                     25.36                                       1.28 
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises.

                              1,115.31                               1,404.40 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 16                                   197.22                                   133.13 
(iv) Lease liabilities 17                               2,736.55                                            -   

(b) Provisions 13                                            -                                              -   
(c) Current tax liabilities (net) 24 b                                            -                                              -   
(d) Other current liabilities 17                                   531.60                                   488.50 

Total current liabilities                               4,885.00                               2,855.36 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES                             51,600.07                             26,316.49 
See accompanying 1 to 35 notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Go Fashion (India) Private Limited
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Balaji M N Gautam Saraogi
Partner Director Director

Gayathri
Company Secretary

Place : Bangalore Place : Chennai
Date : 17.09.2020 Date : 17.09.2020

Chief Financial Officer

Membership No 202094

1. Non-current assets

Particulars

B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS

Prakash Kumar Saraogi    

R.Mohan 



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Note No.
Year ended  

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2019

1. Income
Revenue from operations 18 39,356.40                     28,524.68                     
Other income 19 482.45                           573.15                           

Total Income 39,838.86                     29,097.83                     

2. Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 20 a 10,620.60                     8,275.96                       
Purchases of stock-in-trade 20 b 6,045.92                       2,840.74                       
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 20 c (3,671.35)                      (1,747.52)                      
Manufacturing Expenses 2,758.27                       2,045.17                       
Employee benefit expense 21 6,195.38                       4,196.28                       
Finance costs 22 1,639.94                       1.79                               
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3 4,657.20                       477.96                           
Other expenses 23 4,757.08                       8,002.64                       

Total Expenses 33,003.04                     24,093.02                     

3. Profit before tax (1 - 2) 6,835.82                       5,004.81                       

4. Tax Expenses
Current tax 24 c 2,037.79                       1,339.89                       
Deferred tax 24 c (465.38)                         15.52                             

Income Tax Expenses 1,572.41                       1,355.41                       

5. Profit for the year (3 - 4) 5,263.41                       3,649.40                       

6. Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans [(gain)/ loss] 28.30                             (50.65)                           

Income tax relating to (i) above (7.12)                              14.75                             
Total other comprehensive income 21.18                             (35.90)                           

7. Total comprehensive income for the year (5 + 6) 5,242.23                       3,685.30                       

Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each (face value)
(1) Basic 25 17.54                             12.26                             
(2) Diluted 25 10.08                             7.05                               

See accompanying 1 to 35 notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Balaji M N Prakash Kumar Saraogi    Gautam Saraogi
Partner Director Director

Gayathri
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Bangalore Place : Chennai
Date : 17.09.2020 Date : 17.09.2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Go Fashion (India) Private Limited

Particulars

R.Mohan 

Membership No 202094



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2019

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year                                            6,835.82                                            5,004.81 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets                                                712.70                                                477.97 
Liquidation of subsidiary                                                         -                                                  707.34 
Loan to subsidiary written off                                                         -                                                  345.52 
Property, Plant and Equipment Written off                                                193.43                                                         -   
Provision for inventory                                                178.39                                                  77.72 
(Gain)/ Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment                                                    7.83                                                  (0.54)
Interest on fixed deposits                                              (227.94)                                              (132.76)
Finance costs                                                    1.23                                                    1.79 
Unrealized forex exchange loss (net)                                                    2.90                                                    0.60 
Interest (Time Value) recognized on Lease Liability                                            1,638.71                                                         -   
Depreciation (Notional) recognized on Lease Assets                                            3,944.50                                                         -   
Interest (Time Value) recognized on interest free lease deposits                                              (127.32)                                                (97.95)

Operating profit before working capital changes                                          13,160.25                                            6,384.50 

Working capital adjustments for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories                                          (3,814.56)                                          (2,663.94)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other receivables                                          (1,332.03)                                          (1,022.36)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and advances and other assets                                            1,986.18                                          (1,339.93)
(Decrease)/ Increase  in Trade payables and other current liabilities                                          (2,157.88)                                                806.82 
(Decrease)/ Increase in Provisions                                                         -                                                    37.49 

                                         (5,318.29)                                          (4,181.92)

Cash generated from operations                                            7,841.96                                            2,202.58 

Income tax paid (net of refunds)                                          (2,025.00)                                          (1,674.42)

Net cash flow from/  (used in) operating activities (A)                                            5,816.96                                               528.16 

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and capital work in progress                                          (2,849.54)                                          (2,649.82)
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment                                                    0.81                                                    2.46 
Bank deposits (opened)/ matured during the year                                                  70.64                                          (3,292.63)
Interest received on fixed deposits                                                219.02                                                109.78 

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B)                                          (2,559.07)                                          (5,830.21)

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Security deposit made                                              (842.94)                                                         -   
Finance costs paid                                                  (1.23)                                                  (1.79)
Principal repayment of Lease Liability                                          (2,736.55)
Interest expense on Lease Rental discounting                                          (1,638.71)
Dividends and dividend distribution tax paid                                                         -                                                    (0.35)

Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (C)                                          (5,219.43)                                                  (2.14)

Net increase / decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)                                          (1,961.54)                                          (5,304.20)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                                            2,577.89                                            7,882.09 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                                                616.35                                            2,577.89 

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2019

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents: 
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet                                                    9.76                                            1,061.30 
Add: Current investments considered as part of Cash and cash equivalents ( Refer Note 5)                                                885.54                                            2,344.64 
(as defined in Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows)
Less: Cash credit from banks (Refer Note 14)                                              (278.95)                                              (828.05)

TOTAL                                               616.35                                            2,577.89 

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants Go Fashion (India) Private Limited
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Balaji M N Prakash Kumar Saraogi    Gautam Saraogi
Partner  Director Director

 
R.Mohan Gayathri
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Bangalore Place : Chennai
Date : 17.09.2020 Date : 17.09.2020

Membership No 202094

See accompanying 1 to 35 notes forming part of the financial statements



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

A. Share Capital

Equity share capital :
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Balance as at March 31 , 2019 3,000.01                                        
Movement during the year -                                                  
Balance as at March 31 , 2020 3,000.01                                        

0.01% Series A Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative preference shares :
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Balance as at March 31 , 2019 2,499.62                                        
Movement during the year -                                                  
Balance as at March 31 , 2020 2,499.62                                        

0.01% Series B Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative preference shares :
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Balance as at March 31 , 2019 2,399.86                                        
Movement during the year -                                                  
Balance as at March 31 , 2020 2,399.86                                        

B. Other Equity
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Other comprehensive income

 Securities premium   Retained earnings 
 Re-measurement of 
defined benefit plan 

Balance as at April 1, 2018 10,579.27                                      3,202.43                                        22.21                                              13,803.91                                      
Utilised for issue of bonus shares (2,000.01)                                      -                                                  -                                                   (2,000.01)                                      
Profit for the year -                                                  3,649.40                                        -                                                   3,649.40                                        
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) -                                                  -                                                  35.90                                              35.90                                             
Dividends -                                                  -                                                  -                                                   -                                                  
Tax on dividends -                                                  -                                                  -                                                   -                                                  
Balance as at April 1, 2019 8,579.26                                        6,851.83                                        58.11                                              15,489.20                                     
Utilised for issue of bonus shares -                                                  -                                                  -                                                   -                                                  
Profit for the year -                                                  5,263.41                                        -                                                   5,263.41                                        
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) -                                                  -                                                  (21.18)                                             (21.18)                                            
Dividends -                                                  (0.49)                                              -                                                   (0.49)                                              
Tax on dividends -                                                  (0.10)                                              -                                                   (0.10)                                              

Balance as at March 31, 2020 8,579.26                                        12,114.66                                     36.93                                              20,730.84                                     

See accompanying 1 to 35 notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants Go Fashion (India) Private Limited
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Balaji M N Prakash Kumar Saraogi    Gautam Saraogi
Partner  Director Director

R.Mohan Gayathri
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Bangalore Place : Chennai
Date : 17.09.2020 Date : 17.09.2020

Reserves and surplus
Particulars  Total 

Membership No 202094



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1 General Background

2 Significant accounting policies
2.1 Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS's)

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

2.3

2.4

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would consider those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain assets and liabilities which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below:-

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions ( excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at
the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. A contingent asset Is
neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contract with customer is recognised, when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised. Revenue is recognised as follows:

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the  inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 : Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
- Level 2 : Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
- Level 3 : Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements are included in the following notes: 

(i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment  (Refer Note 2.9)
(ii) Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits (Refer Note 2.7)
(iii) Valuation and measurement of income taxes and deferred taxes (Refer Note 2.8) 

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment has been established. Interest income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable. Income in respect of export incentives arising from export sales are recognised in the year of exports when the certainty of realisation of the incentive is established.

Sale of goods
Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies performance obligation by transferring promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are satisfied at the
point of time when the customer obtains control of the asset. 

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and value added tax. Transaction price is recognised based on the
price specified in the contract, net of the estimated sales incentives/ discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts/ right of return, using the expected value method. Sales are
net of Sales Tax and Goods & Service Tax.

Dividend , Interest Income and Export Incentives

Go Fashions (India) Private Limited ("the Company") was incorporated on September 09, 2010. The Company's registered office is at New No.4, Old No. 144/2, 5th Floor, Sathak Center, Nungambakkam High Road,
Chennai - 600 034, Tamilnadu, India. The Company is mainly engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of apparels for women and kids.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notified roadmap to implement Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. As per requirements for applicablility, the Company would be required to apply Ind AS from financial year beginning 2019-20. However, the Company
decided for voluntary adoption of Ind AS from the financial year beginning April 1, 2018. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS.



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded on the basis of the exchange rate prevailing as on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at rates
prevailing at the year-end.  The net loss or gain arising out of such restatement is dealt with in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign currencies

Leases
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether: 
(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease (iii) the company has the right to direct the 
use of the asset.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        At 
the commencement of the lease, the company recognises a right of use asset (ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a leasee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or 
less (Short term lease) and low value leases.  For those Short term and low value leases, the company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 
Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will 
be exercised.
The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any 
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset 
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the 
asset belongs.
The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company 
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Employee benefits

The Company makes defined contribution to Government Employee Provident Fund, Government Employee Pension Fund, Employee Deposit Linked Insurance and Employee State Insurance, which are recognized
in the statement of Profit and loss on accrual basis. The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the service entitling them to the
contributions.

The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Taxation

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present
value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring costs.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the statement of profit and loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past
service costs.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Liabilities for gratuity funded in terms of a scheme administered by the LIC are determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Past
service cost is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

 - Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
 - Net interest expense or income; and
 - Remeasurement

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT”) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set-off against future tax
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the Balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be
realized.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax 
The tax currently payable is based on estimated taxable profit for the year. Estimated taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Determination of functional currency:
Currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency”) is Indian Rupee (INR) in which the company primarily generates and expends cash. Accordingly, the
Management has assessed its functional currency to be Indian Rupee (INR).

Defined contribution plan



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

2.9

Deemed Cost on transition to Ind AS : 

2.10

2.11

2.12 Inventories

2.13 Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life from the date the assets are ready for intended use. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2017 (transition date) measured as per the Previous Indian
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and impairment loss, if any.

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, as applicable, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment, if any.

Intangible assets comprise of computers and are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 years. The estimated useful lives of the intangible assets and the amortization period are
reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortization period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

Impairment
Financial assets (other than fair value)

Capital work in progress
Amount paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are
disclosed under capital work-in-progress. The capital work- in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Intangible assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect 
of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material). These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or (ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity. 

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The
Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of
those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

Items of inventory are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition
and is net of taxes where applicable. Cost of raw materials, stores and spares, packing material and traded goods is determined on weighted average basis. In case of work-in-process and finished goods, cost
includes an appropriate proportion of cost of conversion.

The cost includes purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable
expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for its
intended use. Subsequent expenditure on fixed assets after its purchase / completion is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future economic benefits from such asset beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance .
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2.14

2.15 Financial Instruments

A) Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at amortized cost

Equity instruments

2.16 Cash and cash equivalent

2.17

Borrowings & Security Deposits
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the repayment amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the liability and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in the profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through
the EIR amortization process.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Investment 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the
profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving  basic  earnings  per  share  and  the  weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to
be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Long-term investments (excluding investment properties), are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary, in the value of such investments. 

Current investments are carried individually, at fair value. Cost of investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Cash comprises cash on hand, cheques and demand drafts on hand, balances with banks in current accounts / demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months
or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

An equity instrument is contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments recognised by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received net off direct issue cost.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortized cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortized cost of the instruments and are recognized in ‘Other income” 
The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are
measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognized in the profit and loss.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Foreign exchange gains and losses
The fair value of foreign assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For the foreign currency denominated
financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

B) Financial liabilities and Equity
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
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2.18 Operating Cycle

2.19 Recent accounting pronouncements

Amendment to Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits

New Accounting Standard : Ind AS 116 - Leases

Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019
containing Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which clarifies the application and measurement requirements in Ind AS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The
current and deferred tax asset or liability shall be recognized and measured by applying the requirements in Ind AS 12 based on the taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates determined by applying this appendix. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes. The amendments require an entity to recognise the income tax consequences of dividends as
defined in Ind AS 109 when it recognises a liability to pay a dividend. The income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to
distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised
those past transactions or events. The amendment will come into force for accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.

Amendments to Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The Company’s lease asset classes consist of leases for buildings. The Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not . A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or after April 1, 2019.

 The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

 The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when 
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the 
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease 
payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind AS 19 – Employee Benefits in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The
amendments require an entity to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement and to recognise in
profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The amendment will
come into force for accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019, though early application is permitted. 

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

a) Tangible Assets b) Intangible assets
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Plant & Machinery Furnitures & Fixtures Vehicles Office Equipment Computers
Electrical 

Installations*
Total Tangible Assets Software

Total Intangible 
Assets

(a) Deemed Cost
Balance as at 1st April 2018 126.25                           2,372.77                       53.30                             217.05                           194.39                           160.96                           3,124.72                       211.97                           211.97                           
Additions 691.12                           1,656.79                       -                                 166.20                           66.75                             -                                 2,580.86                       44.43                             44.43                             
Disposal -                                 (2.46)                              -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 (2.46)                              -                                 -                                 
Adjustments during the year -                                 (2.01)                              -                                 2.01                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 
As at April 1, 2019 817.37                           4,027.10                       53.30                             383.25                           261.14                           160.96                           5,703.12                       256.40                           256.40                           
Additions 6.64                               1,893.02                       0.21                               213.90                           84.14                             -                                 2,197.89                       40.56                             40.56                             
Disposal (11.95)                            (357.49)                         -                                 (9.36)                              (16.02)                            -                                 (394.82)                         (18.31)                            (18.31)                            
Adjustments during the year (27.12)                            37.66                             -                                 (18.37)                            (14.69)                            -                                 (22.52)                            21.16                             21.16                             
Balance as at March 31, 2020 812.06                           5,562.63                       53.51                             587.78                           329.26                           160.96                           7,483.67                       299.81                           299.81                           

(b) Accumulated Depreciation and Amortisation     

Balance as at 1st April 2018 14.47                             273.54                           8.77                               55.99                             126.32                           39.06                             518.14                           184.60                           184.60                           
Depreciation and amortisation expense for the year 18.74                             336.52                           6.33                               52.26                             41.40                             -                                 455.24                           22.72                             22.72                             
Disposal / Adjustments during the year -                                 (0.55)                              -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 (0.55)                              -                                 -                                 
Balance as at March 31, 2019 33.21                             609.51                           15.10                             108.24                           167.72                           39.06                             972.83                           207.32                           207.32                           
Depreciation and amortisation expense for the year 58.27                             505.03                           6.62                               82.33                             40.00                             -                                 692.25                           20.45                             20.45                             
Disposal / Adjustments during the year (8.56)                              (156.40)                         -                                 (15.59)                            (29.82)                            -                                 (210.36)                         (1.12)                              (1.12)                              
Balance as at March 31, 2020 82.91                             958.13                           21.72                             174.98                           177.90                           39.06                             1,454.72                       226.65                           226.65                           

Net carrying value as at March 31, 2020 729.15                           4,604.50                       31.79                             412.80                           151.36                           121.90                           6,028.95                       73.16                             73.16                             
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2019 784.16                           3,417.59                       38.20                             275.01                           93.42                             121.90                           4,730.27                       49.08                             49.08                             

*Depreciation relating to Electrical Installations block is included as part of Furniture & Fixtures.  

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019

Depreciation on Tangible assets 692.25                           455.24                           
Amortization of Intangible assets 20.45                             22.72                             
Depreciation on Lease Assets 3,944.50                       -                                 

Total 4,657.20                       477.96                           

 c) Right-of-use Assets

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
Right-of-use assets (ROU) at the beginning of the year 
as per Ind AS 116                       13,694.63 

Transfer from Deferral Rent- Opening Balance -                                 
Add: Addition during the year 9,721.26                       -                                 
Less: Impact on Lease Modification -                                 
Less: Impact on Lease Termination -                                 
Less: Amortised during the period 3,944.50                       -                                 

Total 19,471.39                     -                                 

Depreciation and Amortisation expenses
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4. Capital work-in-progress
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019

Furniture 65.09                    129.67                  
Office equipment 15.02                    2.98                       
Others 728.29                  63.74                    

TOTAL 808.40                  196.39                  

5.  Financial Assets - Investments

 Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current 

A. Unquoted at Cost
Investment in equity instruments in subsidiary company
Go Fashions FZE, Dubai
Nil equity shares of  AED 10 each fully paid up                            -                              -                              -                              -   

Total Unquoted Investments                            -                              -                              -                              -   

B. Quoted (at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss)
Investments in Mutual funds
HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option                    345.03                            -                          3.75                            -   
13,836 (As at 31 March 2019: 102) units

ICICI Prudential Liquid - Direct Plan - Growth Option                    540.51 
1,17,446 (As at 31 March 2019: 1,928,603) units

HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Daily Dividend                            -                              -                      410.20                            -   
Nil (As at 31 March 2019: 40,223) units

ICICI Prudential Liquid - Direct Plan - Daily Dividend                            -                              -                   1,930.69                            -   
Nil (As at 31 March 2019: 1,928,603) units

Total Quoted Investments                    885.54                            -                  2,344.64                            -   

TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRYING VALUE                    885.54                            -                  2,344.64                            -   

Other disclosures
Aggregate value of quoted investments                    885.54                            -                  2,344.64                            -   
Aggregate value of unquoted investments                            -                              -                              -                              -   

 As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 
Particulars
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6. Financial Assets - Loans
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Current Non- Current Total Current Non- Current Total

 a)  Security Deposits - at amortised cost 
 - Unsecured, considered good 545.36                     2,030.71              2,576.06                  150.01                     1,794.41           1,944.42               

 Less: Provision for doubtful deposits -                            -                        -                            -                            -                     -                         

 b) Other Loans 
 Other advances -                            -                        -                            -                            -                     -                         

 TOTAL 545.36                     2,030.71              2,576.06                  150.01                     1,794.41           1,944.42               

7. Other Assets
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Current Non- Current Total Current Non- Current Total

 (a) Capital advances -                             125.99                  125.99                     19.18                        -                     19.18                     
 (b) Advances to suppliers 172.98                     -                        172.98                     517.19                     -                     517.19                   
 (c) Advances to employees 40.97                        -                        40.97                        16.12                        -                     16.12                     
(d) Advances to others -                            -                        -                            -                            -                     -                         

 (e) Balances with government authorities (other than 
income taxes) 

854.04                     -                        854.04                     489.71                     -                     489.71                   

 (f) Prepayments 
Prepaid expenses 47.87                        -                        47.87                        37.45                        -                     37.45                     
Prepaid rent 681.61                     681.61                     484.73                     484.73                   

(g) Interest accrued on fixed deposits 8.92                          -                        8.92                          25.04                        -                     25.04                     
(h) Other Receivables 0.28                          -                        0.28                          

TOTAL 1,806.67                  125.99                  1,932.66                  1,589.42                  -                     1,589.42               

 Particulars 
 As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

 Particulars 
 As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 
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8. Inventories
(at lower of cost and net realisable value)

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

(a) Raw materials 1,716.03                        1,650.53                            
(b) Work-in-progress 646.50                            1,413.23                            
(c) Finished goods 4,661.67                         2,906.05                             

Finished goods - stock-in-trade 3,739.85                         1,057.39                             
Less: Provision for Inventories (178.39)                          (77.72)                                 

TOTAL 10,585.65                      6,949.47                            

9. Trade Receivables
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Unsecured, considered good                             579.63                                 190.60 
Unsecured, considered doubtful                                       -                                        1.64 

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables                                       -                                       -1.64 
(i)                             579.63                                 190.60 

Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good                          4,665.52                              3,722.52 

(ii)                          4,665.52                              3,722.52 

TOTAL (i+ii)                          5,245.15                              3,913.12 

10 a. Cash and cash equivalents
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

(a) Cash in hand 9.76                                96.40                                  
(b) Balances with banks in current accounts -                                  964.90                                

TOTAL 9.76                                1,061.30                            

10 b. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
 (Amount Rs. In Lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

(a) Earmarked balances with banks 11.49                              11.49                                  
(b) Margin Money Deposits 450.00                            275.78                                
(c) Other Bank Deposits 2,780.89                        3,016.85                            

TOTAL 3,242.38                        3,304.12                            

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date 
they became due for payment

9.1 The average credit period on sale of products ranges between 30 to 60 days.The Company has financial risk management 
policies in place to ensure that all the receivables are collected within the pre-agreed credit terms.



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

11.Share Capital

No. of shares Value (Rs. In Lakhs) No. of shares Value (Rs. In Lakhs)

Authorised: 
Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 31,000,000                      3,100.00                          31,000,000                      3,100.00                     
Preference shares of Rs.100/- each 4,900,000                        4,900.00                          4,900,000                        4,900.00                     

Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid:
Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 30,000,120                      3,000.01                          30,000,120                      3,000.01                     

Preference shares 0.01% Series A Compulsorily 
Convertible Cumulative preference shares of Rs. 100 
each fully paid up

2,499,615                        2,499.62                          2,499,615                        2,499.62                     

Preference shares 0.01% Series B Compulsorily 
Convertible Cumulative preference shares of Rs. 100 
each fully paid up

2,399,860                        2,399.86                          2,399,860                        2,399.86                     

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period.

No. of shares Value (Rs. In Lakhs) No. of shares Value (Rs. In Lakhs)

At the commencement of the year 30,000,120                      1,000.00                          10,000,040                      1,000.00                     
Shares issued during the year -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                
Issue of bonus shares -                                     -                                     20,000,080                      2,000.01                     
At the end of the year 30,000,120                      1,000.00                          30,000,120                      1,000.00                     

At the commencement of the year 2,499,615                        2,499.62                          2,499,615                        2,499.62                     
Shares issued during the year -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                
At the end of the year 2,499,615                        2,499.62                          2,499,615                        2,499.62                     

At the commencement of the year 2,399,860                        2,399.86                          2,399,860.00                  2,399.86                     
Shares issued during the year -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                
At the end of the year 2,399,860                        2,399.86                          2,399,860                        2,400                           

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars

Particulars

(ii) Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares:

0.01% series A Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 
preference shares

0.01% series B Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 
preference shares

Equity Shares with Voting rights

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a nominal value of Rs. 10. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company's
residual assets.The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time subject to payment of dividend to preference shareholders.The voting rights of an equity shareholder
on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums
presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

On winding up of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the
number of equity shares held.
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No. of shares held % holding in that class 
of shares 

No. of shares held % holding in that 
class of shares 

(a) Mr. Rahul Saraogi 60                                      0.0002 14,999,940                      49.99
(b) Mr. Gautam Saraogi 60                                      0.0002 14,999,940                      49.99

(a) VKS Family Trust 14,999,880                      49.99
(b) PKS Family Trust 14,999,880                      49.99

(a) Sequoia Capital India Investments IV 2,499,615                        100.00                              2,499,615                        100.00                         

(a) India Advantage Fund S4 I 2,207,634                        91.99                                2,399,860                        100.00                         
(b) Dynamic India Fund S4 US I 192,226                            8.01                                   -                                     -                                

(vi) Details of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the preceeding three years:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

-                                     20,000,080                      

Particulars

(iii) Terms/ Rights attached to Preference shares:

Paid up preference shares of the Company comprise of:

24,99,615 (P.Y 24,99,615) 0.01% Series A Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each, allotted to Sequoia Capital India Investments IV. The shares are convertible at the
option of holder of the preference shares at the conversion price then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) 1 day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the First Closing Date; or (ii) in connection with a IPO,
prior to filing of a prospectus by the Company.

23,99,860 (PY 23,99,860) 0.01% Series B Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each, allotted to India Advantage Fund S4 I (22,07,634 series) and Dynamic India Fund S4 US
I (1,92,226 series). These shares may be converted to equity shares at any time at the option of the shareholder, at the conversion price then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) 1 day prior to the expiry
of 20 years from the First Closing Date; or (ii) in connection with a IPO, prior to filing of a prospectus by the Company.

During the year 2018-19, the company has alloted bonus shares in the ratio 1:2 for equity shareholders. Preference shareholders are eligible for bonus shares at the time of conversion.

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

Equity Shares with Voting rights

(v) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Preference shares carry a preferential right as to dividend over equity shareholders. Where dividend on cumulative preference shares is not declared for a financial year, the entitlement thereto is
carried forward.The preference shares are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the company on any resolutions of the company directly affecting their rights. However, a cumulative
preference shareholder acquires voting rights on par with an equity shareholder if the dividend on preference shares has remained unpaid for a period of not less than two years. In the event of
liquidation, preference shareholders have a preferential right over equity shareholders to be repaid to the extent of capital paid-up and dividend in arrears on such shares.

Fully paid up bonus shares

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights

0.01% Series A Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 
Preference shares of Rs 100 each fully paid up

0.01% Series B Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 
Preference shares of Rs 100 each fully paid up



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

8,579.26                                      10,579.27                                    
-                                                -                                                
-                                                (2,000.01)                                     

Closing balance 8,579.26                                      8,579.26                                      

Retained Earning
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,851.83                                      3,202.43                                      
Add: Transfer from the statement of Profit & Loss 5,263.41                                      3,649.40                                      
Less : Dividend (0.49)                                             -                                                
Less : Tax on dividend (0.10)                                             -                                                
Closing balance 12,114.65                                    6,851.83                                      

Total Reserves and Surplus 20,693.92                                    15,431.09                                    

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations
Opening Balance 58.11                                            22.21                                            
Add/ (Less): Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations (21.18)                                           35.90                                            
Closing balance 36.92                                            58.11                                            

Total Other Comprehensive Income 36.92                                            58.11                                            

20,730.84                                    15,489.20                                    TOTAL

12. Other equity 

Opening balance
Premium on share issued during the year
Utilised for issue of bonus shares

Securities premium

Particulars



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

13. Provisions
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Current Non- Current Current Non- Current

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 32) -                                      141.95                                -                                      72.44                                  

Other Provisions
Provision for proposed preference dividend -                                      -                                      -                                      -                                      
Provision for tax on proposed dividend -                                      -                                      -                                      -                                      

TOTAL -                                      141.95                                -                                      72.44                                  

14. Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Current)
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

A. Secured Borrowings
Cash credit from Banks (Refer Note below) 28.33                                  828.05                                
Current account - overdraft 250.62                                -                                      

TOTAL 278.95                                828.05                                

Notes:

15. Trade Payables
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 25.36                                   1.28                                    
Dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises

1,115.31                            1,404.40                            

TOTAL 1,140.67                            1,405.68                            

15.1 The average credit period on domestic purchases ranges between 30 -45 days. The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all the payable are paid within the pre-agreed credit
terms.

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars

14.3 Interest is charged at 0.45% above 1 year MCLR on a monthly basis.

14.1 The cash credit facility from Ratnakar Bank Limited comprising of Rs 2000 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: INR 2000 Lakhs), has been obtained for the purpose of working capital. The facility has been availed for a tenure
of 12 months, and is repayable on demand.

14.2 The facility is secured by way of an exclusive charge on the entire current assets and moveable fixed assets of the company, both present and future, and an unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantee of
Mr. Prakash Saraogi, Mr. Gautam Saraogi and Mr. Rahul Saraogi.



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

16. Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

(a) Security Deposits 93.16                                             63.71                                             
(b) Capital Creditors 104.06                                           69.42                                             

TOTAL 197.22                                           133.13                                           

17. Other Current Liabilities
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

(a) Advances received from customers -                                                 0.01                                               
(b) Statutory dues payable 129.54                                           156.24                                           
(c) Employee benefits payable 21.79                                             76.71                                             
(d) Other payables 380.28                                           255.54                                           

(e) Lease Liability
Non-Current
Lease Liability at the beginning of the year as per Ind AS 116 13,694.63                                     -                                                 
Add: Addition During the year 9,721.26                                        -                                                 
Less: Impact on Lease Modification -                                                 -                                                 
Less: Impact on Lease Termination -                                                 -                                                 
Less: Lease Rent expenses 4,375.26                                        -                                                 
Add: Finance cost on Lease Liability 1,638.71                                        -                                                 
Less: Current Lease liability 2,736.55                                        -                                                 

17,942.79                                     -                                                 
Current 
Lease Liabilities 2,736.55                                        

20,679.34                                     -                                                 

21,210.95                                     488.50                                           

Particulars

Particulars

TOTAL



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18. Revenue from Operations
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Sale of Products
Retail Sales 40,613.76                             29,218.70                                 

Less: Discounts provided during the year (1,248.31)                             (659.84)                                     
Less: Gift Vouchers availed during the year (149.22)                                 (187.51)                                     

39,216.23                            28,371.35                                 

Scrap sales 139.05                                  155.13                                      

Export incentives 1.12                                      (1.80)                                         
140.17                                  153.33                                      

39,356.40                      28,524.68                          

18.1 Disaggregated revenue information
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Sales Channels
Exclusive Brand Outlets ('EBO') 26,786.69                             18,192.49                                 
Large Format Stores ('LFS') 10,423.93                             7,633.69                                    
Others - Online, Distributer and Franchisee 2,005.61                               2,698.50                                    

39,216.23                             28,524.68                                 Total Revenue from operations

Total - Other operating revenues

Particulars

Total Revenue from operations

Total - Sale of Products

Other Operating Revenue

Particulars



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

19. Other income
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

- Bank deposits 227.94                                             132.76                                             
- Security deposits measured at amortised cost 127.32                                             97.95                                               
- On investments in mutual funds 96.30                                               286.88                                             

(b) Net Gain on Foreign Exchange Transactions and Translation -                                                    32.70                                               
(c) Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment (Net) -                                                    0.54                                                  
(e) Miscellaneous Income 30.89                                               22.32                                               

482.45                                             573.15                                             

Particulars

TOTAL

(a) Income on financial assets:



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

20 a. Cost of materials consumed

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2020
For the year ended

March 31, 2019

Opening stock of raw materials 1,650.53                                                  734.11                                          
Add: Purchases 10,686.10                                                9,192.38                                       

12,336.63                                                9,926.49                                       
Less: Closing stock of raw materials (1,716.03)                                                 (1,650.53)                                     
Cost of materials consumed 10,620.60                                               8,275.96                                      

Breakup of cost of material consumed:
Fabric 9,176.14                                                  6,910.62                                       
Accessories 973.93                                                     901.06                                          
Packing Materials 230.30                                                     160.88                                          
Yarn 240.22                                                     303.40                                          

10,620.59                                               8,275.96                                      

20 b. Purchases of stock-in-trade
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the year ended

March 31, 2020 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2019 

Garments 6,045.92                                                  2,840.74                                       

TOTAL 6,045.92                                                  2,840.74                                      

20 c. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

Opening Stock
Work-in-progress                                                   1,413.23 998.33                                          
Finished goods and stock-in-trade                                                   3,963.43 2,630.81                                       

                                                  5,376.66                                        3,629.14 

Closing Stock
Work-in-progress                                                       646.50                                        1,413.23 
Finished goods and stock-in-trade                                                   8,401.51                                        3,963.43 

                                                  9,048.01                                        5,376.66 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 
stock-in-trade

                                                 (3,671.35)                                      (1,747.52)



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

21. Employee benefit expenses
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus 5,804.03                                       3,898.47                                       
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 134.34                                          81.56                                            
(c) Gratuity expenses 71.21                                            67.84                                            
(d) Staff welfare expenses 185.80                                          148.41                                          

6,195.38                                      4,196.28                                      

22. Finance costs
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

Interest expense on cash credit facility 1.23                                              1.79                                              
Interest expense on Lease Rental discounting 1,638.71                                       

1,639.94                                      1.79                                              TOTAL

Particulars

Particulars

TOTAL



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

23. Other expenses
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended  
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Power & fuel 395.54                                            220.93                                           
Sales Promotion Expenses 866.98                                            531.38                                           
Freight and handling charges 473.96                                            371.40                                           
Rent 1,109.87                                        3,762.57                                       
Repairs and maintenance : 

- Buildings 553.44                                            399.38                                           
- Machinery 4.17                                                16.95                                             
- Others 235.71                                            296.86                                           

Communication expenses 63.85                                              48.89                                             
Printing and stationery 38.00                                              28.68                                             
Travelling and conveyance 162.44                                            181.66                                           
Rates and taxes 107.68                                            56.14                                             
Legal and professional charges 110.80                                            139.31                                           
Payment to auditor (Refer note below) 18.59                                              18.35                                             
Expenditure on corporate social responsibilty (CSR) (Refer Note 29) 6.05                                                25.79                                             
Cash collection charges 112.08                                            78.94                                             
Net Gain on Foreign Exchange Transactions and Translation 14.36                                              -                                                  
Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment (Net) 7.83                                                -                                                  
Bank charges 160.99                                            98.44                                             
Investment written off -                                                  707.34                                           
Loan written off -                                                  345.52                                           
Property, Plant and Equipment written off 193.43                                            -                                                  
Obsolete Stock written off -                                                  501.97                                           
Provision for Inventory -                                                  77.72                                             
Miscellaneous expenses 121.30                                            94.42                                             

4,757.08                                        8,002.64                                       

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 
For the year ended

 March 31, 2019

18.36                                              16.00                                             
-                                                  1.55                                               
-                                                  0.60                                               

0.23                                                0.20                                               

18.59                                              18.35                                             

Particulars

Transfer Pricing audit

TOTAL

Payments to Auditors

Statutory audit

Other services
Reimbursement of expenses

TOTAL
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24 a Deferred tax assets and liabilities (net)
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Deferred tax assets 561.22                                    88.72                                      
Deferred tax liabilities -                                          -                                          

Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) 561.22                                    88.72                                      

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars  As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Deferred tax liability
a)Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets -                                          -                                          
Gross deferred tax liability -                                          -                                          

Deferred tax asset
a)Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 38.10                                      6.91                                        
b) Employee benefits 69.61                                      54.61                                      
c) Preliminary expenses  disallowed 15.67                                      27.20                                      
d) Right to use asset 437.85                                    
Gross deferred tax asset 561.22                                    88.72                                      

Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) (net) 561.22                                    88.72                                      

24 b Current tax assets and liabilities (net)
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Provision for taxation 1,884.13                                 1,367.81                                 
Less: Taxes paid (2,063.88)                               (1,513.35)                               

Net current tax asset/ (current tax liability) (179.74)                                  (145.54)                                  

24 c Current tax and deferred tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

2,053.56                                 1,367.81                                 
(15.77)                                     (27.92)                                     

2,037.79                                1,339.89                                

(15.00)                                     (5.03)                                       
(31.19)                                     8.44                                        

Right to use asset (437.85)                                   
11.52                                      26.86                                      

(472.51)                                   30.27                                      
Less: Income tax recognized on other comprehensive income 7.12                                        (14.75)                                     

(465.38)                                  15.52                                      

Provision for Employee Benefits
Difference between book balance and tax balance of Property, plant and equipment

Preliminary expenses allowed

TOTAL

Particulars

Current Tax
- in respect of current year
- in respect of prior years

TOTAL

Deferred Tax
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25. Earnings per share has been computed as under:
₹ 

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Profit after Tax - (Rs. In Lakhs) 5,263.41                            3,679.66                            
Less: Preference dividend - (Rs. In Lakhs) (0.49)                                   (0.49)                                   
Less: Dividend distribution tax on the above - (Rs. In Lakhs) (0.10)                                   (0.10)                                   
Profit after Tax attributable for Equity share holders - (Rs. In Lakhs) 5,262.82                            3,679.07                            

Earnings per share – Basic (Rs.) 17.54                                  12.26                                  
Earnings per share – Diluted (Rs.) 10.08                                   7.05                                     
Face Value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 10.00                                   10.00                                   

Note:
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (No's) 30,000,120                        30,000,120                        
Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (No's) 52,197,390                        52,197,390                        

26. Leases
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Operating lease commitment as lessee
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss
a) Minimum lease payments                              5,018.43                              3,545.21 
b) Contingent rent                                 324.96                                 217.36 

Variable rent for certain stores is payable in accordance with the lease agreement as the 
higher of :

                             5,343.39                              3,762.57 

(a) fixed minimum guarantee amount   
(b) revenue share percentage

c)The future minimum rental payments in respect of leased premises are as follows:

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Not later than one year                              7,188.83                              3,153.17 
Later than one year and not later than five years                            29,250.44                              8,135.78 
Later than five years                            22,818.37                              2,954.34 

27. Contingent liabilities and commitments
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

(i) Contingent liabilities
a) Bank guarantees outstanding 37.27                                           -   
b) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

- Telangana CST Demand 2016-17 -                                      37.65                                  
- Jammu and Kashmir CST Demand 2015-16 -                                      -                                      
- Income Tax - AY 17-18 74.39                                   -                                      
- Income Tax - AY 18-19 50.70                                   -                                      
- Income Tax - AY 19-20 17.72                                   -                                      

180.07                                37.65                                  
(ii) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 
for

-                                       296.21                                

Less: Capital Advances paid -                                      (75.47)                                 
TOTAL -                                       220.74                                

(i) Future cash flows in respect of the above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending at various forums/authorities. Management is hopeful of 
successful outcome in the appellate proceedings.

Agreements with a non-cancellable clause are executed for periods ranging from 6 to 108 months and with cancellable clause ranging from 7 to 108 months. 
The future minimum rental payments in respect of non-cancellable lease for premises are as below:

Since there is no change in Equity shares outstanding compared to Previous Year, Diluted shares outstanding also remains the same.
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28 Disclosures required under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year; -                                                    1.28                                         

The amount of interest paid by the buyer under the Act along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year;

-                                                    -                                          

The amount of interest due and payable for the year (where the principal has been paid but interest under the Act not paid); -                                                    -                                          

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year -                                                    -                                          
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23.

-                                                    -                                          

Note:

29 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended

 March 31, 2020
For the year ended March 

31, 2019

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 63.17                                               30.57                                      

Amount spent during the year 6.05                                                  25.79                                      

Note:

30 Disclosure in respect of Related Parties pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 24

a) List of Related Parties and Relationships

Relationship
Subsidiaries GO Fashion FZE, UAE

Key Management Personnel Prakash Kumar Saraogi  
Gautam Saraogi

Relatives of ('KMP') Ms.Usha Saraogi 
Ms.Anita Rasiwasia
Ms.Pushpa Saraogi
Ms.Neha Garodia
Ms. Ruchita Saraogi

Entities in which KMP / Relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Note: Related Parties relationships are as identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors.

Meridian Investments, Firm
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited
(formerly Meridian Apparels Private Limited)
Go Colors Garment Trading LLC, UAE
Invenire Energy Private Limited

The information regarding Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.
This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Related Party

The company is in the process of determining specific activities and identifying specific partners that would be aligned with Company’s CSR Policy. The deficit of CSR expenditure in the current 
year, will be spent in the subsequent year.



GO FASHION (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Disclosure in respect of Related Parties pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 24 (contd.)

b) Related Party transactions
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Transactions during the year:

Remuneration of KMP:
Prakash Kumar Saraogi 86.83                               86.83                               -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Gautam Saraogi 34.73                               34.73                               -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Mohan R - Chief Financial Officer 131.40                             -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Gayathri Kethar - Company Secretary 6.58                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Loan written off:
GO Fashion FZE -                                   -                                   -                                   345.52                             -                                   -                                   

Investment written off:
GO Fashion FZE -                                   -                                   -                                   707.34                             -                                   -                                   

Bad debts:
GO Fashion FZE -                                   -                                   -                                   24.45                               -                                   -                                   

Interest income  :
Invenire Energy Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   4.29                                 
Prakash Kumar Saraogi 1.37                                 

Advance Given :
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   300.00                             

Refund of Advance :
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   300.00                             

Sales of Finished goods :
GO Fashion FZE -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   0.09                                 
Ms.Usha Saraogi -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Ms.Anita Rasiwasia 0.01                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Ms.Pushpa Saraogi 0.50                                 0.03                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Ms.Neha Garodia 0.03                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Ms. Ruchita Saraogi -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Purchases of raw materials :
Go Fashion FZE -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Purchases of assets :
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   0.27                                 0.62                                 

Rent :
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   161.30                             141.28                             

Subcontracting Expenses :
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited 45.85                               

Security deposit :
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   72.00                               

EB :
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   4.22                                 -                                   

Other Income :
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   2.79                                 -                                   

Loan Given :
Go Fashion FZE -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Prakash Kumar Saraogi 610.00                             
Invenire Energy Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Refund of Loan Given :
Prakash Kumar Saraogi 610.00                             

Particulars

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced 
by Key Management Personnel / Directors and 

their relatives
Subsidiary*Key Management Personnel and their Relatives
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Disclosure in respect of Related Parties pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 24 (contd.)
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Outstanding as at Year end:

Trade receivables:
Go Fashion FZE -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   0.10                                 

Security deposit :
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   72.00                               72.00                               

Trade Payables:
Go Fashion FZE -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Meridian Global Ventures Private Limited -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   4.21                                 0.29                                 

Loan receivable:
Go Fashion FZE -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Balances receivable from KMP and their relatives
Ms.Usha Saraogi -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Ms.Anita Rasiwasia -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Ms.Pushpa Saraogi -                                   0.03                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Ms.Neha Garodia -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   
Ms. Ruchita Saraogi -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Subsidiary*
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced 

by Key Management  Personnel / Directors and 
their relatives

Key Management Personnel and their 
RelativesParticulars
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31
A)

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

               28,630.33              23,388.69 
99% 97%

                     278.95                    828.05 
1% 3%

               28,909.28              24,216.74 

B) Categories of financial instruments
The carrying value of the financial instruments by categories as on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is as follows:

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

As at
 March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Financial assets
a) Measured at fair value though profit and loss
Investments in Mutual Funds 885.55                  2,344.64                 885.55                  2,344.64                    

b) Measured at amortised cost
Investment in subsidiary -                         -                          -                         -                              
Loans 2,576.06               1,944.42                 2,576.06               1,944.42                    
Trade receivables 5,245.15               3,913.12                 5,245.15               3,913.12                    
Cash and cash equivalents 9.76                       1,061.30                 9.76                       1,061.30                    
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 3,242.38               3,304.12                 3,242.38               3,304.12                    

Total 11,958.89             12,567.60              11,958.89            12,567.60                  
Financial liabilities
a) Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 278.95                  828.05                    278.95                  828.05                       
Trade payables 1,140.68               1,405.68                 1,140.68               1,405.68                    
Other financial liabilities 197.22                  133.13                    197.22                  133.13                       
Total 1,616.85               2,366.86                1,616.85               2,366.86                    

C) Financial Risk Management

The Company is predominantly financed through Equity, which is evident from the capital structure table. There is no change in the overall capital risk management strategy of the
Company compared to last year.

As a percentage of total capital
Total Capital

Financial Instruments
Capital Management
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Company
monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends on its equity shares. The Company’s objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to
maximize shareholder value.

Particulars

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the company
As a percentage of total capital
Current borrowings

As at
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company is exposed  to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized as below:

Particulars

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in
a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
1. The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as comprise of borrowings, trade payable,and other current liabilities, loans, trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents and
bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents at carrying value because their carrying values are a reasonable approximation of the fair values due to their short term nature.

Fair valueCarrying amount

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the
counter party.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise of borrowings, trade payable and other financial liabilities.

The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk
governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors.

This process provides assurance to Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company policies and Company's risk objective.

The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations.
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(a) Market Risk: 

i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk sensitivity

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Amount in FC Amount in INR Amount in FC Amount in INR
Liabilities
Trade Payables
USD 1.47                       101.66                    -                         -                              

Assets
Trade receivables
AED -                         -                          -                         -                              
USD -                         -                          0.91                       63.12                          

Loan receivable
AED -                         -                          -                         -                              

Advance paid to supplier
USD 0.50                       34.72                      1.72                       118.80                       

Net Assets (66.94)                     181.92                       

Sensitivity

5% Increase 5% Decrease 5% Increase 5% Decrease
USD (3.65)                      3.65                        9.10                       (9.10)                          
AED -                         -                          -                         -                              

ii) Interest Rate Risk

(b) Credit Risk :

i) Trade Receivables

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime expected credit loss method based on provision matrix. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as a majority
of its trade receivable balance is receivable from Large Format Stores('LFS'), who are well established business entities, and have been regular in their payments over the history of the
business.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality
of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating review and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. The Company regularly monitors its
outstanding customer receivables.

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Interest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Company’s financial liabilities
comprises of interest bearing cash credit facility; however these are not exposed to risk of fluctuation in market interest rate as the rates are fixed at the time of contract/agreement
and do not change for any market fluctuation. Moreover, the cash credit facility is used to facilitate the cash flow movement of the Company during the year, and the Company
prefers to generally maintain a positive balance, hence controlling the interest costs pertaining to the cash credit facility.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises three types of risk: 
currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include borrowings, security deposits, investments 
and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March, 2019. The analyses exclude the impact of 
movements in market variables on; the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the 
relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of March 31, 2020.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure
to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to its operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in foreign currency). The Company evaluates
exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies.

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and AED exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the profit
before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. Foreign currency exposures recognised by the Company that have not been hedged by a derivative
instrument or otherwise are as under:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Particulars
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Impact on profit before tax and equity
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ii) Financial instruments and cash & bank deposits

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
 As at 

March 31, 2019 
Non-current assets
 - Investments -                         -                          
 - Loans 2,030.71               1,794.41                 
Current assets
 - Investments 885.55                  2,344.64                 
 - Trade receivables 5,245.15               3,913.12                 
 - Cash and cash equivalents 9.76                       1,061.30                 
 - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3,242.38               3,304.12                 
 - loans 545.36                  150.01                    
Total 11,958.90             12,567.60              

Balances with banks is subject to low credit risks due to good credit ratings assigned to these banks.

The ageing analysis and Provision for bad and doubtful debts of trade receivables given below has been considered from the date the invoice falls due:

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
 As at 

March 31, 2019 
Not Due 
Due from 0 to 180 days 4,665.52               3,722.52                 
Due from more than 180 days 579.63                  192.24                    

Less: Provision for Doubtful debts (1.64)                       
Total 5,245.15               3,913.12                

(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. The Company's objective is to at all times maintain
optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It
maintains adequate source of financing throughthe use of short term investments and a cash credit facility. Processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior
management. Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company assessed the concentration of risk
with respect to its debt and concluded it to be very low.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2020 is the carrying amounts which are given below. Trade Receivables and
other financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage in the repayment plan with the company.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s finance department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made in bank deposits and mutual funds. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counter party’s potential
failure to make payments.

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
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Maturity profile of financial liabilities
The table below provides the details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date:

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Carrying Value Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years

As at March 31, 2020
Borrowings 278.95                   278.95                   -                         
Trade payables 1,140.68                1,140.68                -                         
Other financial liabilities 197.22                   197.22                   -                         
Total 1,616.85                1,616.85                -                         

Particulars Carrying Value Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years
As at March 31, 2019
Borrowings 828.05                   828.05                   -                         
Trade payables 1,405.68                1,405.68                -                         
Other financial liabilities 133.13                   133.13                   -                         
Total 2,366.86                2,366.86                -                         

D) Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: Techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

Disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments are given below:
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

L-1 L-2 L-3 On Amortised Cost L-1 L-2 L-3 On Amortised Cost
Financial assets
Carrying amounts/fair value:
a) Measured at fair value through Profit and loss
Investment in Mutual Funds 885.55                   -                         -                                 2,344.64                -                         -                             

-                         
b) Measured at amortised cost
Investment in Subsidiary -                         -                         -                                 -                         -                             
Loans -                         -                         2,576.06                        -                         -                         1,944.42                    
Trade receivables -                         -                         5,245.15                        -                         -                         3,913.12                    
Cash and cash equivalents -                         -                         9.76                               -                         -                         1,061.30                    
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents -                         -                         3,242.38                        3,304.12                    
TOTAL 885.55                   -                         11,073.35                     2,344.64                -                         10,222.96                  
Financial liabilities
Carrying amounts/fair value:
c) Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings -                         -                         278.95                   -                         -                         828.05                   
Trade payables -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Other financial liabilities -                         -                         197.22                   -                         -                         133.13                   
TOTAL -                         -                         476.17                   -                         -                         961.18                   

Particulars
Carrying amount/Fair value

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
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32. Employee benefits

(a) Defined Contribution plan: 

(ii) Expenses Recognized
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Year ended
 March 31, 2020

Year ended
 March 31, 2019

120.07                                 72.24                                    

123.57                                 105.94                                 

(b) Defined Benefit plans: 

(c) Other disclosures of Defined Benefit plans as required under Ind AS–19 are as under

(i) Amount recognised in the statement of profit & loss in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows :
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Service Cost
- Current Service Cost                                     66.97                                 62.46 
- Interest cost                                       4.23                                   5.39 

                                    71.20                                 67.85 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on Plan Obligations 21.45                                    (53.08)                              
Difference between Actual Return and Interest Income on Plan Assets- (gain)/loss 6.85                                      2                                       
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (B) 28.30                                   (50.65)                              

TOTAL (A+B) 99.50                                   17.20                               

(ii) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is as follows :

I. Net (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation                                   197.04                               101.16 
Less: Fair value of plan assets                                    (55.09)                                     (29)
Net (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet                                   141.95                                 72.44 
Current portion of the above                                            -                                          -   
Non current portion of the above                                   141.95                                 84.37 

Particulars

 Year ended
 March 31, 2020 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2019 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2020 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2019 

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

(i) The Company makes Provident and Pension Fund contributions, which is a defined contribution plan, for qualifying employees. Additionally, the Company also provides, for
covered employees, health insurance through the Employee State Insurance scheme. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the
payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the Schemes.

Particulars

(a) Included under 'Contributions to Provident and Other Funds' (Refer Note 21)
Contributions to provident and pension funds

(b) Included under 'Staff Welfare Expenses' (Refer Note 21)
Contributions to Employee State Insurance

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the benefit vests upon 
completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, the 
gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting. The Company makes annual contribution to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. 

In respect of the plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 March 2019. The 
present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and paid service cost, were measured using the projected unit cost credit method.

Particulars

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in statement of profit or loss (A)
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(iii) Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year                                   101.16                                 85.24 
Expenses Recognised in statement of Profit & Loss

- Current Service Cost                                     66.97                                 62.46 
- Interest cost                                       7.46                                   6.54 

Benefit Paid                                            -                                          -   
Remeasurement gains / (losses)
 - Actuarial Gain (Loss)                                     21.45                                (53.08)
Present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of year                                   197.04                               101.16 

(iv) Movement in fair value of plan assets are as follows :

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year                                     28.72                                        -   
Interest income on plan assets                                       3.22                                   1.15 
Expenses Recognised in statement of Profit & Loss

 - Expected return on plan assets                                      (6.85)                                  (2.43)
Remeasurement gains / (losses)

- Actuarial gains/(loss) arising form changes in financial assumptions                                            -                                          -   
Contributions by employer (including benefit payments recoverable)                                     30.00                                 30.00 
Benefit payments                                            -                                          -   
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year                                     55.09                                 28.72 

v. Sensitivity Analysis*
a) Impact of the change in the discount rate

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

197.04                                 
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50% 191.05                                 
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 203.35                                 

b) Impact of the change in the salary increase
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

197.04                                 
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50% 203.10                                 
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 191.23                                 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2020 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2019 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2020 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2019 

Year ended March 31, 
2020

Year ended March 31, 
2020

Present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of year

Present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of year

* Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Particulars

Particulars

* Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pension in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum
benefit on retirement.

Particulars

Particulars

 (Amount Rs. In Lakhs) 
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vi. Maturity Profile.
(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

0 to 1 year                                     13.94 
1 to 2 Year                                     15.53 
2 to 3 Year                                     20.73 
3 to 4 Year                                     27.19 
4 to 5 Year                                     30.93 
5 years onwards                                   106.36 

vii. Actuarial Assumptions:
Principal assumptions used for actuarial valuation are:

Method used
Discount rate 6.49% 7.37%
Salary Escalation 10.00% 10.00%

Withdrawal rate up to 30/44 and above 44 years 20% 20%

33. Segment Reporting

 Year ended
 March 31, 2019 

Particulars
 Year ended

 March 31, 2020 

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of retail trade through retail and departmental stores facilities, which in the terms of Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments',
constitutes a single reporting business segment.

There are no material individual markets outside India and hence the same is not disclosed for geographical segments for the segment revenues or results or assets. During the
year ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 respectively, revenue from transactions with a single external customer did not amount to 10 percent or more of the Company's revenues
from the external customers. 

LIC Ann (1996-98)
Mortality Rate

 Year ended
 March 31, 2020 

IALM (2006-08) Ultimate

Projected unit credit method

Particulars
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34 Lease

(i) The Company has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics
(ii) The Company has not applied the requirements of Ind AS 116 for leases of low value assets.
(iii) The Company has used hindsight, in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.
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In March 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) declared COVID-19 to be pandemic. The Company’s operations were impacted from 25.03.2020 till 01.05.2020 as all 
its stores and offices were closed. The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the financial statements
of the Company. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as
at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information. The company has performed an analysis on the assumptions
used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of its assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may
differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. As on date of approval of these financial statements, significant part of stores are
opened and others are in the process of reopening.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 – Leases and related interpretation 
and guidance. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the simplified transition approach. The details of such approach  are given below:

On transition to Ind AS 116, the Company recognised right-of-use assets amounting to Rs.23,415.89 lakhs and accumulated depreciation of Rs.3,944.50 lakhs, lease 
liabilities amounting to Rs. 21, 210.95 lakhs. The Company has discounted lease payments using the applicable incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019, which is 9% 
for measuring the lease liability.


